

#### GREEN ENERGY AND CLIMATE CHANGE WORKING GROUP MINUTES

Friday, November 29<sup>th</sup>, 2024 2:00 p.m. Tay Valley Municipal Office – 217 Harper Road, Perth, Ontario Council Chambers

#### ATTENDANCE:

Members Present:	Chair, Councillor, Greg Hallam Bob Argue Jennifer Dickson Douglas Barr Gilbert Rossignol
Members Absent:	Councillor, Angela Pierman David Poch
Staff Present:	Noelle Reeve, Planner Genevieve Neelin, Recording Secretary

#### 1. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 2:15 p.m. A quorum was present.

#### 2. AMENDMENTS/APPROVAL OF AGENDA

i) Addition to New/Other Business: Name Change of Working Group

The Agenda was approved as amended.

## 3. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST AND/OR CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND GENERAL NATURE THEREOF

None at this time.

#### 4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

#### i) Minutes – September 13<sup>th</sup>, 2024.

Councilor A. Pierman was captured as present but was absent from the meeting. The Working Group agreed to amend the minutes to reflect this.

The minutes of the Green Energy and Climate Change Working Group Meeting held on September 13<sup>th</sup>, 2024 were approved as amended.

#### 5. DELEGATIONS & PRESENTATIONS

None.

#### 6. BUSINESS

#### i) Climate Action Plan Update.

• Budget 2025

The Planner reviewed the Township's proposed budget for 2025 and which items may provide an opportunity for implementing emission reductions in line with the Township's Climate Change Action Plan - <u>https://www.tayvalleytwp.ca/en/municipal-government/budget-and-financial-reports.aspx#2025-Budget</u>

- Growth Management Plan: by increasing density in hamlets, the new Zoning By-Law can potentially encourage density. G. Rossignol and J. Dickson asked if it is possible to require that environmental considerations be applied to new buildings.
   D. Barr asked if the Township can do anything to encourage small businesses in Hamlets
- Asset Management Plan: tenders for new acquisitions by the Township need to be viewed through the Climate Lens. Public Works is applying for a grant to take the Township building off fossil fuels.
- Waste Site Redesign: B. Argue suggested that the waste site redesign should wait until the new recycling contract is finalized (switching to a 2-stream recycling program with Circular Material (CM).
- Roads: surface treatment means roads will last longer reducing the need to re-pave as frequently. Speed limit is being dropped on some gravel roads (slower driving means lower emissions).
- Vehicles and Equipment: Township vehicles can be switched to electric as they
  reach the end of their lifespan. The Chief Building Official's (CBO's) car will be an
  electric vehicle (EV) when replaced this year. Larger trucks with snowplows are
  more of a challenge, limited options available. Though B. Argue identified some
  electric <sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub> ton truck options.
- Forest Trail: Northland Power will provide an "Energy Node" solar energy educational display.

- Building Retrofit Application *deferred to the next meeting.*
- Consultation on Ontario's Affordable Energy Future:
  - The Pressing Case for More Power, ERO 019-9285 no need for the Township to comment so received for information.

#### ii) Communications

• Lanark County Climate Change Committee Update

The Planner informed members about Lanark County's acceptance into the Building to Net Zero cohort. Green Building Design Standards are being developed by Lanark County. These standards and the Lanark County Adaptation Study will be useful information for the Township to follow in creating similar standards.

Lanark County Council has authorized an agreement for a micro-transit feasibility study through the Rural Transit Solutions Fund – *attached page 5.* 

• Material for Township Website

G. Rossignol has created educational material for the Township website, follow up with Deputy Clerk on whether these can be posted.

#### 7. NEW/OTHER BUSINESS

i) Name Change for Working Group – *attached, page 11.* 

Members discussed P. Nelson's e-mail regarding a suggested name change for the Working Group. Mr. Nelson has proposed *Clean Energy & Climate Change*. The Reeve has proposed *Energy Transition Working Group*. P. Nelson's e-mail also discussed discouraging people from heating with solid wood fuel. The Working Group agreed to discuss emissions from burning wood at a later meeting and unanimously decided against discussing a name change at this time.

#### 8. NEXT MEETING DATE AND PROPOSED AGENDA ITEMS

Next Meeting: Friday, February 14<sup>th</sup>, 2025 at 2:00 p.m.

#### 9. DEFERRED ITEMS

\*The following items will be discussed at the next and/or future meeting:

- Set Priorities and Targets from Strategic Plan and Climate Action Plan Planner
- Green Energy and Climate Change Report Card 2024 Planner
- New Ontario Building Code Does it Include Green Initiatives? Planner
- Greener Neighbourhood Pilot Programs by Natural Resources Canada G. Rossignol

#### 10. ADJOURNMENT

The Working Group adjourned at 3:30 p.m.

Hallon Chair

Secretary

## BUSINESS



*For immediate release Nov. 15, 2024* 

Here are the highlights from the Lanark County Council meeting held Nov. 13, 2024.

Please note there is a separate media release highlighting the Lanark County Awards of Excellence.

**Rail Trails Loop Project Update Received:** Lanark County Council received an update about the Rail Trails Loop Project, which is exploring development of a 360-kilometre signature trail using multi-use trails rehabilitated from former railways in Lanark, Renfrew and Frontenac counties.

At the economic development committee meeting last month, Tourism and Corporate Relations Coordinator Vanessa Dow explained a partnership with the three counties, along with the Town of Smiths Falls and Township of Rideau Lakes, is exploring the feasibility of the project with support from a FedDev Ontario grant for \$78,235.

There are three phases:

- 1. A consultant has assessed the trails and market readiness and will provide recommendations, including attracting private investment by tourism stakeholders, this year.
- 2. In 2024 and 2025, municipalities, trail groups and other partners will implement recommendations to ensure a minimum standard of market readiness.
- 3. In 2025 and 2026, promotion will begin when the loop is at or near its minimum level of market readiness with the goal of establishing it as a signature experience in Canada.

Next steps include a strategic planning session for stakeholders, assessment of the report recommendations, implementation of recommended trail improvements, community engagement to support business participation and increase awareness of the impact of trails, and development of trail identification, branding and marketing.

Dow added the loop will encompass three main trails with offshoots and intersections to bring visitors to all parts of Lanark County, and it will be marketed across Canada, the U.S. and potentially beyond. "The project will allow Lanark County's trails, one of our greatest assets, to become a driver for economic prosperity," she said. For more information, contact Vanessa Dow, Tourism and Corporate Relations Coordinator, at 1-888-9-LANARK, ext. 1701.

**Warden Nominations Announced:** Lanark County Council accepted a report from Clerk Jasmin Ralph outlining the valid nominations received for the position of Warden in 2025.



Two nominations have been received:

- Councillor Christa Lowry (Mississippi Mills Mayor), which was moved by Councillor Rickey Minnille (Mississippi Mills Deputy Mayor) and Councillor Karen Jennings (Montague Reeve).
- Councillor Toby Randell (Carleton Place Mayor), which was moved by Councillors Andrew Tennant (Carleton Place Deputy Mayor) and Councillor Richard Kidd (Beckwith Reeve).

The inaugural meeting takes place on Nov. 26 at 2 p.m., at which point county councillors will vote to select next year's warden. For more information, contact Jasmin Ralph, Clerk, at 1-888-9-LANARK, ext. 1502.

**National Housing Day in Lanark County Proclaimed:** Lanark County Warden Steve Fournier (Drummond/North Elmsley Reeve) has proclaimed Nov. 22, 2024 as National Housing Day in Lanark County, which acknowledges the work being done by housing partners to improve access to housing in order build brighter futures for all Canadians.

"The lack of safe and affordable housing in Lanark County impacts the well-being of all residents, including our most vulnerable and low-income households, and limits their capacity to engage meaningfully in our community," the proclamation states.

The goal of the day is to raise awareness about local housing issues, reflect on the significant work being done and to continue to strive for increased solutions as housing and affordability remain a pressing demand. "This day is also an opportunity to reflect on the work that is still needed," the proclamation states, adding the county is committed to working with the federal and provincial governments, as well as private and non-profit housing providers, to achieve solutions. "On National Housing Day, Lanark County recognizes the many partners that play an important role in providing permanent, safe, and affordable housing opportunities to those in need." For more information, contact Emily Hollington, Director of Social Services, at 1-888-9-LANARK, ext. 2101

**Extra Costs for Blakeney Bridge Outlined:** Lanark County Council has approved a change order to cover extra costs related to the Blakeney Bridge replacement project.

The bridge was initially expected to reopen this year, but this has been delayed until spring due to unforeseen weather-related challenges this summer, with unseasonable precipitation and elevated river flows affecting the progress of essential work and original budget estimates.

The change order covers specified costs in the amount of \$114,786, and funding has also been approved for additional dewatering and other associated costs in the amount of about \$310,000. The items are funded from savings in the 2024 public works capital budget, with any additional



funds coming from the public works capital reserve. For more information, contact Sean Derouin, Public Works Manager, at 1-888-9-LANARK, ext. 3194.

**Climate/Environmental Activities Update Received:** Lanark County Council has accepted an update on climate and environmental sub-department activities. At the public works committee meeting last month, Climate Environmental Coordinator Michelle Rabbetts provided an overview of programs and initiatives aimed at achieving greenhouse gas emissions (GHG) targets and meeting climate action goals.

Rabbetts noted relevant county plans that involve this sub-department, including the Sustainable Communities Official Plan (SCOP); the Integrated Vegetation Management Plan and the Climate Action Plan in 2023, which established community greenhouse gas emissions targets.

Rabbetts noted that the county has been accepted into the Building to Net Zero cohort. This four- year training and capacity-building program aligns with the goal of establishing green development standards that enforce climate resilient and adaptive building designs to increase energy efficiency and reduce GHG emissions.

As part of the Lanark County Climate Action Plan, which addresses how the county aims to mitigate the effects of climate change by reducing GHG emissions, an adaptation plan, which outlines actions to adjust to the current and expected impacts of climate change, will be created. As well, Rabbetts indicated the county's asset management plan is to be updated to include county-owned green infrastructure, such as community forests and wetlands. For more information, contact Michelle Rabbetts, Climate Environmental Coordinator, at 1-888-9-LANARK, ext. 3114.

**New Community Safety Zone Established:** Lanark County Council has passed a by-law to establish a community safety zone on County Road 23 (Rosedale Road South) at the Montague Centennial Hall from Bristow Drive to 100 metres north of Guthrie Road.

Public Works Manager Sean Derouin explained the request was received by the Township and was evaluated using the county's speed management policy program screening and community safety zone warrants. "Proximity to the Montague Centennial Hall and Seniors Forget-Me-Not Club, as well as pedestrian crossings during events at the hall, justified the criteria," Derouin said. In addition, traffic data collected showed the section of road was experiencing an unusually high speed violation rate, despite the township installing flashing radar signs in the area.

The posted speed is 60 kilometres per hour. Once community safety zones are posted, fines for traffic-related offences in that area are doubled upon conviction. For more information, contact Sean Derouin, Public Works Manager, at 1-888-9-LANARK, ext. 3194.



**ROMA Delegation Requests Set:** Lanark County Council has authorized staff to proceed with preparing three delegation request submissions for the annual Rural Ontario Municipal Association conference in January. The delegations are an opportunity for municipalities to present information about current issues to ministry staff.

The first request is for additional funding to expand supportive housing beds at the Bridge House in Smiths Falls for a total of 30 beds. The delegation to the Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing would be supported by Director of Social Services Emily Hollington and Lanark County Mental Health Executive Director Garry Laws. The request would support council's strategic priority related to social housing and supporting attainable housing solutions.

The second request is for an additional increase for individuals on Ontario Works and Ontario Disability Support Program supports in light of increases in basic costs, such as groceries and housing. This request would be to the Ministry of Children, Community and Social Services and would be supported by Hollington and Lanark County Situation Table Coordinator Stephanie Gray. The request could be complementary to council's Universal Basic Income strategic priority.

The third request is to address issues related to road safety with a focus on rural highways, including Hwy. 7. This request to the Ministry of Transportation is supported by the Public Works Department and aligns with council's roadside safety strategic priority. Council is seeking a fourth delegation with the Ministry of the Solicitor General regarding the rising cost of policing for all municipalities in Lanark County.

For more information, contact Jasmin Ralph, Clerk, at 1-888-9-LANARK, ext. 1502.

**Rural Transit Feasibility Study to Proceed:** Lanark County Council has approved and authorized an agreement for the Rural Transit Solutions Fund, which is a federal fund targeting the development of transit solutions in rural and remote communities.

The fund supports development of locally driven projects to improve transportation. Council also affirmed the county has the capacity and authority to undertake a rural transit feasibility study. For more information, contact Kurt Greaves, CAO, at 1-888-9-LANARK, ext. 1101.

**Upcoming Meetings: Inaugural Meeting, Tuesday, Nov. 26, 2 p.m. County Council, Wednesday, Nov. 27, 5 p.m.;** Public Works, Nov. 27 (following County Council); Economic Development, Nov. 27 (following Public Works). **County Council, Wednesday, Dec. 4, 5 p.m.;** Community Services, Dec. 4 (following County Council); Corporate Services, Dec. 4 (following Community Services). Watch for details about public access to meetings on agendas and through



online notifications. For more information, contact 1-888-9-LANARK, ext. 1502. Like "LanarkCounty1" on Facebook and follow "@LanarkCounty1" on X!

\_\_\_\_\_3 0\_\_\_\_

# NEW/OTHER BUSINESS

Begin forwarded message:

From: Rob Rainer <<u>rrainer.reeve@tayvalleytwp.ca</u>> Date: November 29, 2024 at 9:16:45 AM EST To: "Peter J. Nelson" <<u>repeter75@hotmail.com</u>> Cc: TVT Planner <<u>planner@tayvalleytwp.ca</u>>, Angela Pierman <<u>apierman.councillor@tayvalleytwp.ca</u>>, Robert Argue <<u>bobinamber1@gmail.com</u>>, <u>dpoch@eelaw.ca</u>, Doug Barr <<u>douglaswbarr@gmail.com</u>>, Greg Hallam <<u>ghallam.councillor@tayvalleytwp.ca</u>>, Jennifer Dickson <<u>jenniferdicksonhome@gmail.com</u>>, Gilbert Rossignol <<u>grwashere@hotmail.com</u>> Subject: Re: Working Group Needs a Name Change: Clean Energy & Climate Change

Hi Peter. Thank you for your message and the various articles and resources. I agree "green" energy is a misnomer and that "clean" would be better. That said, even "clean" is arguably a misnomer for every source of energy comes with an environmental cost, even those sources deemed to be "clean". Perhaps an alternative name could be "Energy Transition Working Group" which, I think, fits better with the central purpose of the group - to help the Township and the community transition away from fossil fuels, and at the least make steady gains in fossil fuel consumption reduction.

Rob

From: Peter J. Nelson <<u>repeter75@hotmail.com</u>>

Sent: November 28, 2024 5:52 PM

To: Rob Rainer <<u>rrainer.reeve@tayvalleytwp.ca</u>>; TVT Planner <<u>planner@tayvalleytwp.ca</u>> Cc: Greg Hallam <<u>ghallam.councillor@tayvalleytwp.ca</u>>; Angela Pierman <<u>apierman.councillor@tayvalleytwp.ca</u>>; Robert Argue <<u>bobinamber1@gmail.com</u>>; <u>dpoch@eelaw.ca</u> <<u>dpoch@eelaw.ca</u>>; Doug Barr <<u>douglaswbarr@gmail.com</u>>; Jennifer Dickson <<u>ienniferdicksonhome@gmail.com</u>>; Gilbert Rossignol <<u>grwashere@hotmail.com</u>> Subject: Working Group Needs a Name Change: Clean Energy & Climate Change

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Dear Mr. Reeve (Rob Rainer):

Today I am writing to recommend that Tay Valley Township's presently structured working group entitled "Green Energy & Climate Change" should be restructured under the name "Clean Energy & Climate Change."

Having served for seven years under the "Green" WG, I have seen the futility of continuing with it. What I have seen is a back-room attempt to maintain the status quo -- to deny any personal or corporate responsibility to change behaviour w.r.t. atmospheric pollution. While Tay Valley has been diligent around the subject of water pollution: there seems to be a cloud of willful blindness when it comes to air pollution — burning firewood, in particular.

Attached are a few documents which outline scientific facts and political strategies from outside of Tay Valley. Some of this information I presented to the WG four years ago; some

of it is as new as 2024. All of it points to the necessity to stop burning things -- for the sake of human health (our own, our neighbours) and for the sake of planetary health (mitigating climate change, protecting biodiversity).

There are many wise conclusions to be found in the attached articles, or in the full texts referenced.

Here are a few quotes:

- "It is difficult to justify heating our homes with wood or solid fuel when cleaner alternatives exist." G. Fuller.
- "Burning these solid fuels was once a massive problem that we solved. Let's resist the temptation to roll back this progress: it might feel like the eco-friendly thing to do, but the data tells us that it's not." H. Ritchie.
- Tay Valley needs to follow, and respect, the advice of our federal government. In particular, we must heed the report:

"Health Impacts of Air Pollution from Transportation, Industry and Residential Sources in Canada."

File: H144-112-2022-eng.pdf. Available from Government of Canada Publications. Links: <u>publications@tpsgc-pwgsc.gc.ca</u> / Tel: 1-800-622-6232 / TTY 1-800-926-9105

Briefly, this report found that (in year 2015, at the national scale), home firewood burning contributed the most to Canadian premature deaths and high morbidity. Indeed, home firewood burning contributed almost twice the negative impact of air pollution from the other major sources: on-road transportation and the ore and mineral industry!

Admittedly, I am too old and I have family health issues to deal with. These issues prevent me from taking a more proactive role in the present WG. If the focus was changed to "Clean Energy," I might be more inclined to participate in the future. Just the same, this letter is not a resignation -- it is a protest.

Yours truly, Peter J. Nelson tele. 613-264-8458 e-mail: <u>repeter75@hotmail.com</u>